# **SPARE**Practice Assessment Evaluation

## www.onlinepare.net

## Practice Assessment Record & Evaluation: Online PARE Tool

## **Placement Educator Guide**

Version 1.3.2 Publication Date: February 2024

Compiled by the OnlinePARE Team University of Chester, Marriss House, Hamilton Street, Birkenhead, Wirral CH41 5AL ©OnlinePARE



## Contents

Introduction
What can a Placement Educator do on PARE?
Account Activation3
Your Dashboard4
My Profile
My Profile section
Update/Manage Your Qualifications7
PAR Document Notifications8
My Preferences10
My Portfolio11
Assessments 13
PAR Document Access13
Dashboard PAR Document Access13
PAR Document Temporary Access14
Assessment Documents Screen15
The Practice Assessment Record (PAR)16
PAR Document Contents17
Editing the PAR Document
Electronic Signatures20
Page/Section Lock Down21
Unlocking a Page/Section21
Counter-Signing22
History Logging23
Discussion Board24
Timesheets
Dashboard Timesheet Access25

Timesheet Temporary Access	.25
Editing Timesheets	.26
Adding Timesheet Weeks	.26
Adding Activity Types & Hours	.27
Adding Notes to Timesheet Days	.29
Signing Off Timesheets	.30
Signature Access	.30
Declaration Section and Overall Signatures	.31
Unlocking Timesheets	.32
Timesheet Read-Only Status	.32
History Logging	.33
The PARE Team	34

## Introduction

## What can a Placement Educator do on PARE?

As a placement educator you can:

- View and edit PAR documents of learners who have been assigned to you by your Placement Educator Lead
- View and edit timesheets of learners in your placement area, and
- Claim a learner who has not been assigned to a member of staff

Normally, your learners will be assigned to you by your Placement Educator Leads. If possible, please contact your PELs to have the correct learner assigned to you, rather than claiming your learner yourself.

In smaller placement provider organisations, staff from an HEI which sends learners on placement there may adopt the roles of Placement Senior Administrator/Educator Lead.

## **Account Activation**

When your new account is created on PARE, an activation email will be sent through to you. This email will allow you to log into PARE for the first time and set up your profile.



If you do not receive this email within 10-15 minutes of your account being set up, check your **spam/junk folder** to make sure that it has not been redirected there. If you still cannot find your activation email, please contact your Placement Educator Lead/Placement Senior Administrator. They will be able to check that your email ID has been entered correctly on your PARE account and resend the activation email.

## **Your Dashboard**

When you first log in to PARE, you will be brought to your dashboard:



Your dashboard on PARE can be split into two sections. Firstly, the left-hand side contains a link to your profile, and various useful information. You will find:

- Your Profile (more on this below)
- **OnlinePARE User Guides:** A link to a section of the PARE websites with all the user guides
- Raising Concerns: guidance for raising concerns in your placement area
- **View Demo Links**: a pop-up window showing demo documents you can familiarise yourself with before a learner arrives on placement.
- **PARE Access Levels**: gives a description of the different types PARE of account and what each can do

The central section of your PARE Dashboard is where you will find information about your placement area(s), and links to your learner's documents and timesheets. Here you can:

- Click the **PAR document** to see the details of that learner's progress, and contribute as needed e.g. by signing off Practice Experience
- Click a learner's name in **Learner Timesheet** to see the learner's hours and update them
- View **Placement Details** in a list of the placement area(s) to which you are assigned. Check they are accurate and contact your Placement Educator Lead if they are not.
- **PARE Newsfeed** Items: news releases by the PARE team, including new features
- The **Useful downloads** section includes information you might use on PARE, such as a timesheet guide

## **My Profile**

In the top of left of your dashboard, find the section **My Profile**, and click the green **View Profile** button, or click your name at the top right of your dashboard and choose **My Profile**.

There are **four sections** to the PARE 'My Profile' screen:

## **My Profile section**

Your profile contains information about your account on PARE. Through your profile, you can:

- Update your details; remember to save. If your email address needs changing, contact your Placement Educator Lead or Placement Senior Administrator for help they will be able to update it.
- **Change your PARE password** we recommend you do this regularly
- Add learner professions which you will be supporting. This might include professions other than your own.

To be assigned to a learner on PARE you must be marked as supporting their discipline in your profile.

	🕮 News 🕕	👻 🏛 Governance 👻 🌲 Notifi	cations ዐ 🗸	💄 Test Educa	ator (Supervisor) 👻
PRARE Practice Assessment Record & Evaluation		DASHBOARD	ASSESSMEI	NTS NEWS	HELP CENTRE
My Profile					My Profile
My Profile	<mark>å</mark> My Profile				🗐 History
My Messages	First Name	Test			
My Preferences	Last Name	Educator (Supervisor)			
My Portfolio	Email	test_trust_educator1@onlinepa	are.net		
Video Help Guides	Mobile Phone Number	(optional)	0		
	Work Phone Number	(required)	0		
	Password	Change password			
	Select your personal prot	ession 🔁:			
	Profession:	Nursing	~	<b>x</b>	
			•	• Add Another	Profession
	Select all learner disciplines / programmes that you will be supporting: This shows or hides student documents and notifications to keep your account deshboard manageable	Advanced Practice Audiology Community Nursing Disability Nursing Community Specialist Practice (School Nursing) District Nursing Healthcare Scientist Midwifery Vursing	Ar Ca Ca De De He Mu	t Therapy ardiac Physiolog mmunity Speciali PN) entistry etetics ealth Visitor edical Student on-Medical Pre- ursing Associat	gist st Practice scribing e

## **Update/Manage Your Qualifications**

If applicable, you can manage your **NMC declarations**. Enter the Field(s) of Nursing, date of update and permission level. PARE supports both self-declaration, and for a Placement Senior Admin to 'declare' the permission level for their placement educators. Check your organisation's approach if needed.

If you are self-declaring your 2018 NMC permission level, complete all fields on the online NMC selfassessment form then 'sign' by clicking the green **Add Signature** button. Click **View** to open the form and download it as a PDF if required.

Fields Of Nursing	Adult	Child	Mental Health	Learning Disability
Last Update	08-12-2023 X Remove Date			
NMC 2018 Permissions	Practice Sup Practice Sup Practice Ass	pervisor pervisor sessor	~ Details	View
Declarations	08/12/2023 X Delete	Practice Supervisor	Self Declared	
Assessor/Educator Qualification Details (Free text)			Å	0
				Save Changes

If NMC declarations do not apply you instead have a text box to add your qualifications, along with the date they were last updated:

Last Update	× Remove Date
Assessor/Educator Qualification Details (Free text)	6
	Save Changes

## **PAR Document Notifications**

PARE will send notifications to your account when:

- You are assigned as an assessor to a learner on PARE
- You are granted temporary access to a learner's document
- Changes are made to your learner's document
- A discussion comment is added to a document that you are assigned to
- Certain pages of your Learner's document are overdue
- A learner who you are assigned to has timesheets which are overdue

Your learner will also be sent notifications to inform them of changes to their document, and if their timesheets or certain parts of their document are overdue.

To go to your notifications, either click your name in the top right-hand corner of the page, and select **My Messages**, or go to **Your Profile** and select **My Messages** from the left-hand side.

	🖾 News 🧿	👻 🏛 Governance 🗸 🌲 Notific	ations Օ	🔹 🔺 Test Educator (Supervisor) 🗸
		DASHBOARD	ASSE	🛓 My Profile
My Profile				My Messages     My Preferences
My Profile 🕨	& My Profile			My Portfolio     Switch to Hannah Thompson
My Messages	First Name	Test		ዕ Log Out
My Preferences	Last Name	Educator (Supervisor)		
My Foldolo	Email	test_trust_educator1@onlinepa	re.net	
Video Help Guides	Mobile Phone Number	(optional)	0	
	Work Phone Number	(required)	1	
	Select your personal prof	ession ():		
	Profession:	Nursing		× ×
				+ Add Another Profession

PARE messages with a **red X** are unread; those with **green ticks** have been read. **Notifications** on the dark blue banner shows the number of unread messages in an **orange box**. These correspond to the unread messages listed.

		🕮 News 🕕	- 🏛 Governance	- 🐥 Notificatio	ns 🔼 🔹 🔺 Te	st Lead 🝷
PARE Practice Assessment Record & Evaluation	ه آه <sup>ه</sup> ب-	DASHBOARD	ASSESSMENTS	EVALUATIONS	USERS HELP	CENTRE
My Messages					My	Nessages
My Profile 🕨	My Mess	ages				
My Messages	This section is you	ur inbox for all OnlinePAF	E activity		Mark All A	As Read
My Preferences >	My Messages	; (25 Unread)				
My Portfolio 🕨	Search: Sea	rch				
	Date From	Not	fication		Read	View
	3 Dec Online	ePARE Time	sheet Not Signed O	ff	×	
	3 Dec Online	ePARE Time	sheet Not Signed O	ff	×	
	16 Nov Online	ePARE Time	sheet Not Signed O	ff	×	

Messages usually have **links** to the pertinent record. Click to go directly to that record, e.g. to inform you that you have been assigned to a new learner:

You have beei	n assigned as a practice assessor/educator	×
From:	System Generated Message	
Subject:	You have been assigned as a practice assessor/educator	
Time Sent:	30th Jan 2024 4:45pm	
You have been a	ssigned as the practice assessor/educator to the following student:	
Student: Test St	udent (Nursing)	
PAR document:	LJMU BSc Nursing - Full Programme (Practice Experience 1)	
Placement: LJM	J - Test Placement Area 1	
Placement Date	<b>es:</b> 1st Nov 2023 → 31st Jan 2024	
View PAR		
Close & Mar	k As Unread Close Notification ID: 2864825	98

## **My Preferences**

Choose **how frequently you receive Notifications** from PARE. Remember to save your changes:

Email Notifications			
All notifications issued by the OnlinePARE system can be found in the <b>Notifications</b> section on the top of each page. For security reasons, email reminders will only contain text reminding you of the number unread notifications in your account.			
If you do not have any unread notifications you will not receive any email remir	ders		
Email Notification Preferences			
Daily email notification 🕄	0		
Two email notifications per week 🕄	۲		
Weekly email notifications 🕄	0		
Never send email notifications 🚯	0		
	Save Changes		

Even if you choose 'Never send email notifications', if a task is urgent and needs your attention you may still receive a notification

## **My Portfolio**



This section summarises **the PAR documents you have signed**, both for the past 12 months and to date. You can use the information to evidence your support of learners for your own personal development portfolio. There is a graphical overview of your signatures, split by month as well as HEI partner.

On the same screen, in separate tables this information is given by HEI, Profession, and Course Year to date, and for the previous 12 months.

🐣 Documents Signed - Previ	ous 12 Months				
The table below indicates the university, profession (and field if applicable), course level and the number of students (with the same University/Profession/Field/Course Level) for whom you have electronically signed online PAR documents since <b>7th Feb 2023</b> .					
Total number of documents signe	ed since 7th Feb 2023: <b>50</b>				
University 🗢	Profession/Field 🗢	Course Year 🖨	Documents Signed <del>\$</del>		
Edge Hill University	Nursing		6		
Edge Hill University	Nursing	2	4		
Edge Hill University	Nursing	3	3		
Edge Hill University	ODP	1	2		
Edge Hill University	ODP	2	4		
Edge Hill University	ODP	3	3		
Liverpool John Moores University	Nursing		10		

Signed - To Date is also available but not shown here.

The last section on **My Portfolio** shows a **My Signatures**, a summary of your signatures by learner, and separately, the **Timesheet Signatures** you have applied.

Each learner is allocated a unique two-letter code to anonymise their details. Search for a learner's two initials to filter just their records. My Signatures is shown below:

📤 My Signatu	res			
Each student is a please clicked the Search: cm	nonymised and assigned a letter. e blue letter.	To view signatures relating	to a particula	r student, View
Date \$	Document \$	PAR Page ≑	Signature Details	Anonymised Version Of Page
24th Jun 2021	LJMU BSc Nursing (Adult) - Year 3 Nursing student	Spoke 2 (1-4 weeks)	œ	
24th Jun 2021	LJMU BSc Nursing (Adult) - Year 3 Nursing student CM	Evidence of Exposure	œ	

Choose **View** to see the details; note that the learner's name is removed on all such documents to retain anonymity:

🛓 Learner Signature:	( <b>Anonymised</b> : Name Removed)	🛗 Date Signed:	8th Apr 2024 2:46pm
Placement Educator Signature:	Mentor aisxxogeq7	🛗 Date Signed:	8th Apr 2024 2:47pm

## Assessments

## **PAR Document Access**

PAR documents are viewable for staff up to 4 weeks before a learner or preceptee's placement start date on PARE. To access the learner's PAR document, you will need to be assigned **the same placement area** as the learner. You must also have the **learner's discipline** selected in your PARE profile's list of disciplines that you support.

There are two main ways to access a learner's PAR document on PARE; directly via a shortcut from your PARE Dashboard, or via the Assessments screen:

## **Dashboard PAR Document Access**

You can view the documents of learners you have been assigned to from your dashboard. You will also have been sent a notification to let you know that your learner has been allocated to you.



You can also use **Claim a Learner** to assign yourself to your learner. For the nursing professions, you will need to be declared as a Practice Assessor to see the details of unclaimed learners in this section.

We strongly advise contacting your Placement Educator Leads/Placement Senior Admins to have a learner assigned to you if possible

### **PAR Document Temporary Access**

Your learner can also **grant you temporary access** to their document. Once they have done so, you will see the document on your dashboard. Temporary access lasts for a four-week period each time it is granted.

This feature is useful where a learner has been on placement with you in the past, but your access has expired, and the learner still needs you to fill in or sign off parts of their document. Access to a learner's PAR Document ends four weeks after the end date of the placement.

Learners can also use this feature to grant access to staff at a spoke placement with no PAR Document assigned to it.

To grant temporary access to their educator please advise your learner to go to their document's settings, via their PAR Document **Grant Access** menu bar item on the right-hand side of their PAR document, or via the **Document Settings** link on the front page of their PAR Document.



Clicking on the Grant Access button, or the Document Settings link, opens the Access Settings popup:

Document Settings			×
Access Settings Practice Assessors/Educators			
Practice Assessors/Educators	Status		
Test Placement Educator Lead test_pel@onlinepare.net	✓ Has Access Practice Assessor for Practice Experience 1		
Users With Temporary Access To Th	is PAR Document		
User	Role	Access Expires	Revoke
Test Educator2 test_trust_educator2@onlinepare.net	Supervisor/Educator	8th Aug 2022	×
Grant temporary PAR access to a sup	vervisor/assessor/educator or academi	c staff member	
Include Timesheet Acc	ess		
This grant access feature gives temporary 5 Access will be for 4 weeks, so for longer pl Learners are able to grant access to <u>Supery</u>	Supervisor / Assessor level access to a user with acements, this access route will need to be repea <u>risors</u> only. If an <u>Assessor</u> is required, please cor	an active PARE account. ated if required. atact Placement Team Leader or Univers Grant Temporary Acc	ity. :cess

If you were previously assigned a Practice Assessor, your learner can click the green **Grant Temporary Access** button next to your name to allow you to view and edit their document again.

If you are not listed there, they can grant you temporary access as a supervisor by **entering your email address** in the box below.

#### **Assessment Documents Screen**

You can also access the PAR documents for all learners with current placements for your placement area via the **Assessment Documents** Screen, if the learner's discipline is one you have been listed as supporting on PARE.

To see the PAR documents for all learners in your placement area(s), click the **Assessments** tab at the top of your screen, and go to the **HEI Assessment Documents** tab. Select the discipline of the learner you are searching for from the drop down.

This will list **all current learners** with PAR Documents for your placement areas and discipline. You can see the **placement details**; whether an **Assessor/Educator is assigned** by hovering your mouse over the circle; and view the **PAR document.** 

PARE Practice Assessment Record & Evaluation		DASHBOARD	ASSESSMENTS	NEWS HELP C	ENTRE
HEI Assessment Doc	uments		HE	I Assessment Doc	uments
HEI Assessment Documents 🕨	Welcome to the Practice Assess documents available to you.	nent Record section. This page	e will include any on	line assessment	
Video Help Guides	Discipline: N	ursing			~
	Search: Search	Placement	Assesso Educate Assigne \$	Academic or/ Assessor/ or Tutor ed Assigned \$	View
	Test Learner UoC MSc Nursing - Full Programme	Part 2 Placement 1 1st Jan 2024 ➔ 31st Jan 2024 Dummy Ward A1	•	AA: ● Tutor: ●	
	<b>test Learner</b> Bolton MSc Nursing - Full Programme	Part 1 Placement 1 1st Jan 2024 → 31st Jan 2024 Dummy Ward A1	•	AA: ● Tutor: ●	
	Test Student A LJMU BSc Nursing - Full Programme	Part 1 Simulation 1st Nov 2023 <b>→</b> 31st Jan 2024 LJMU - Test Placement Area	1	AA: 🔴 Tutor: 🛑	
	Test Student	Part 1 Simulation		۵۵۰ 📥	

In this example, the orange circle shows that no Academic Assessor has yet been assigned to the learner:

Learner \$	Placement	Assigned Assigned Academic assessor is not
Test Learner UoC MSc Nursing - Full Programme	Part 2 Placement 1 1st Jan 2024 ➔ 31st Jan 2024 Dummy Ward A1	AA:

If an Assessor/Educator has not been assigned, hovering over the red dot will show you a list of Placement Educator Leads for their placement area.

## The Practice Assessment Record (PAR)

When you first open a learner's PAR document you will be brought to the front cover. This has a standard format, displaying information including the document's title, the learner's details, and information about the staff who are assigned to them.

The **Menu Bar** will display either to the side of the screen, or along the bottom of the screen:

PARE Practice Assessment Record & Evaluation	DASHBOARD PAR EVALUATION I	NEWS HELP CENTRE	
Nursing PAR North - Part 1	Nursing PAR	North - Pa » Cover Page	
	Student: Test Stud & Download/View PD	ent1   University: Demo	
University of Cumbria MANCHESTER University of Constrained Constra	UVERPOOL JOHN MOORES Edge Hill University	University Manchester Salford MANCHESTER University	517
Academic Assessor: Not Assigned	Student name: Test Stude	ent1 Conten	ts
Personal Tutor: Not Assigned	Student ID: orig_id:12	19655	sion
	Cohort: test		
		<ul> <li>Grant</li> <li>Access</li> </ul>	
All North U	niversities	Evaluat	tion
PRACTICE ASSESSMI	INT DOCUMENT 2.0	< Timesh	eets
Pai	t 1	Other Document	ents
BSc/PGI	Dip/MSc		
PLPAD 2.0, Future Nurse: Standards of pro	ficiency for registered nurses, (NMC 2018)	(E	
			Ð.
Paį	e 1		
Page ref. 74	2018-11007	(E	SITE
-		Next >>	

- Click the **Contents** tab to see a list of pages in the document. Click on a page on the list to go to it on PARE
- You and your learner can use the **Discussion** tab to post comments here for each other to read and respond to
- Click the **Timesheets** tab to see a list of all timesheets for placements linked to the PAR document. Timesheets for your placement area are marked with an **edit symbol**, which you can click to open the learner's timesheet for the placement
- Open the **Other Documents** tab to see any additional documentation linked to your learner, which can be accessed via this menu item. If there are no additional documents assigned to the student, this tab will not be visible

## **PAR Document Contents**

When you go to the contents tab, you will see an additional **Contents page** listed, which all PAR documents contain:

12 <b>⊒</b> ≣ C	contents X	
Pag	ge Title	
1	Cover Page	
2	Acknowledgements	
3	Contents	
4	Welcome to the Practice Assessment Document	
5	Guidance for using the PAD	
6	Guidelines for Assessment and Progression in Practice	
7	Overall Framework Parts	
8	Factors that may impact on learning (optional)	

This page allows you to:

- See a **preview** of all document pages
- Check **which signatures have been added** to the document by learners and staff. Signatures that have been added are marked with a **tick** and pages which have not been signed are marked with a **cross**
- A **no-entry** symbol indicates a multi entry record page, which no records have neem added to e.g. a page for recording support visits or additional interviews
- Hovering over a tick will display information about what type of user has signed off a page

Conten	its	😝   🌞   💣 Wipe Pa
Year 2 No	rth	
		Signatures
Page	Preview	Student         Practice         Practice         Academic           Title         Assessor         Supervisor         Assessor
1	<b></b>	Cover Page
2	Ţ	Acknowledgements
3	<b>P</b>	Contents
4	Ţ	Welcome to the Practice Assessment Document
5	Ţ	Guidance for using the PAD
6	Ţ	Guidelines for Assessment and Progression
7	Ţ	Overall Framework Parts
8	Ţ	Document Signatories
9	Ţ	Placement 1: SUMMATIVE
10	Ţ	Placement 1: Orientation Signed by student
11	Ţ	Placement 1: Initial Interview
12	<b></b>	Placement 1: Professional Values in Practice (Part 2)

Some assessment documents block later pages from being accessed until earlier pages have been signed off, so the **Contents** page can be a useful page to view sign off status.

In other assessment documents signing off later pages can set earlier pages to **read only.** For example, signing off an **End of Part One Page** and confirming they have completed that section of their course might prevent you and your learner from making changes to Part 1 of the document.

## **Editing the PAR Document**

You are only granted access to fill in and sign off PAR documents when it is necessary for your role as a placement area. You might not have access to fill in or sign parts of a document if:

- You are a learner's **Supervisor**, and those parts are to be completed by their **Assessor**
- That part of the document is to be filled in by the learner
- The **final signatures** have been added to a page or section, marking it as complete. Once the final signatures have been added, the page will be **locked** cannot be edited unless they are removed.

Parts of the PAR document which you do not have access to edit will be **greyed out**. If you do not have access to fill in or sign off part of the document that you believe you should, please contact your Placement Educator Lead/Senior Placement Admin.

In the example image below, the text box at the top is **greyed out** because it is for the student to complete, and the **white text boxes** below it can be filled in by the assigned Supervisor/Assessor who is viewing it.

UoM MSc Nursing Adult - Full Programme	UoM MSc Nursing Adult > Part 1 - Placement 1:
Lo	earner: UoM Nursing Student   University: University of Manchester
O There is no assigned Practice Assessor for Part 1 Placement 1	×
Part 1 - Placement 1: Initial Interview	Part 1 Placement 1   🚇 History
(This can be completed by a Practice Supervisor or Practice Assessor. If co	ompleted by the PS they must discuss and agree with the PA)
This meeting should take place within the first week of the placen	nent
Learning Environment: Demo Hospital - Ward 5	
Learner to identify learning and development needs (with guidance f	from the Practice Supervisor or Practice Assessor)
Taking available learning opportunities into consideration, the le	earner and Practice Supervisor/Practice Assessor to negotiate
and agree a learning plan.	
Outline of Learning Plan	How will this be achieved?
Learning plan for placement agreed by Practice Assessor (where applicable)	Select
Learner Signature: Unsigned	🛗 Date Signed: Unsigned
Practice Supervisor/ Assessor Save Required Signature:	🛗 Date Signed: Unsigned
Page	11
	1 40 F118
Fage ref. 263	2020 A
PAR ID:	1971
<< Previous	x Discard Changes ■Save Next >>

Any information you type into a PAR Document must be saved by clicking the green Save button before you leave the page. If you do not save your changes they could be lost

PARE will not let you sign off a page if it still has unsaved changes

## **Electronic Signatures**

You have the ability to digitally sign your learner's PAR document. This confirms that its contents accurately reflects their time in your placement area.

If you have access to add a signature on PARE, you will see a green **Add Signature** button in the signature box. If you do not have access to add a signature, no button will be displayed, and **Unsigned** will be written in the signature box.

sor:	v shout their programion at mid point	versuling their Duefersional
s taken place with the learne	a about their progression at mid-point	
Add Signature	🛗 Date Signed:	Unsigned
learners reflection about the	eir Professional Values and completed	the final assessment.
	An Data Simula	Unsigned
	sor: s taken place with the learne Add Signature	sor: s taken place with the learner about their progression at mid-point Add Signature learners reflection about their Professional Values and completed

To add your signature, click the button, then **save your changes**. The green **Add Signature** button will be replaced by a grey **Signed** button.

Practice Supervisor/Assessor Signature:	Signed	🛗 Date Signed:	20th Feb 2024 2:13pm

When other users view this page, they will see it signed with **your name**, and **the date and time** you signed it off.

Practice Supervisor/Assessor	Test Educator (Supervisor)	🛗 Date Signed:	20th Feb 2024 2:13pm
Signature:			💣 SA Unlock

## Page/Section Lock Down

When a page or section has been signed off on PARE, it will then be **locked off**. This prevents any new changes from being made to it. If a page or section is locked, you will see a **padlock icon** and the word **Locked** at the top right of the page/section.

Placement 1: Record of V professional Working	Vorking With and	d Learning Fro	om Others/Ii	nter- Placement 1   🖉 Hist	ory
Student Reflection: Reflect on your le	arning in outreach/short p	placements or with m	embers of the mul	lti-disciplinary team who are supervis	ing
Student Reflection:		○ Practic	e Supervisor's Co	Locked ∎ Unlock	
test		test		ĥ	
🛔 Student Signature:	Test Student1	1	Date Signed:	17th Feb 2020 1:40pm	
Practice Supervisor/ Assessor Signature:	Signed	Ê	Date Signed:	17th Feb 2020 1:48pm	

## **Unlocking a Page/Section**

To unlock a page or section on PARE, click the green **Unlock** button. This will open a pop up which will ask you to confirm you would like to remove all signatures from the page. Click the green **Unlock** button in the right hand corner to confirm your choice.



## Unlocking a page will remove all signatures, not just your own

Once any necessary changes have been made to the document, **it will need to be signed again** to confirm that it accurately represents the learner's experiences at their placement.

### **Counter-Signing**

Some pages can also be **counter-signed** by another member of staff on PARE. This can be used when a second signature is required, for example, to provide a signature from a fully qualified member of staff when the main signature is from a Placement Educator in training. To add a counter signature, click the green button displayed next to the existing signature:

🛓 Learner Signature:	UoM Nursing Student	🛗 Date Signed:	20th Feb 2024 4:36pm
Practice Supervisor/ Assessor Signature:	Test Educator (Superv sor) 🛃	🛗 Date Signed:	20th Feb 2024 4:33pm

Then, confirm that you would like to countersign the signature:



PARE will validate your credentials, then confirm if the signature has been added. Your signature will then be shown beneath the original signature:



## **History Logging**

All PAR document pages which can be edited by staff and learners have a **History Log** which records the changes that have been made to them. This records text and signatures that have been added or removed, and gives the name of the user who made the change as well as the date and time of the action.

Click on the **History** link at the top right-hand corner of the page to view the logs.



The pop-up box **Page History** will open on your screen, listing all changes that have been made. To search for a specific change to the page, use the search box of the left-hand side to narrow down the results:

Page History					×
S Studen	It Supervisor/	Tea	m Manager/	U University Staff Member	
Search: Search	Educator	500	JENT LINK/PEP		
Date	Details		Value Entered		
3:23pm 20th Feb 2020	M Test Educator (test_educator (test_educator)) Other signature added	ator@onlinepare.net)	Signature Added		
3:23pm 20th Feb 2020	M Test Educator (test_educa Item updated by Practice Sup	ator@onlinepare.net) ervisor/ Assessor	My student has d highly professio	emonstrated a nal attitude.	
3:22pm 20th Feb 2020	M Test Educator (test_educator (test_educator )	ator@onlinepare.net) pervisor/ Assessor			

## **Discussion Board**

The discussion board on your learner's document can be used for communication between placement staff, academic staff, and their learner. To view it, click the **Discussion** tab on your learner's document.

in Governance	♥ Discussion ×		<b>^</b>
DASHBOARD AS	This section is for the student and mentor(s) to discuss PAR related issues. PEFs and HEI admin staff may also use this section.		
	Demo Placement Educator (Demo Trust)		
Student: Demo Learne	We can arrange to dicuss your Orientation at your next shift. Any queries you have in the meantime, please make a note of them, so that we can cover any concerns on the day.		
	Ø 28th Aug 2019		
	Demo Learner (Demo University)		> Discussion
	I have a few items I would like to run by you. I will make sure that I have prepared for these before hand. Also, I need to arrange an additional shift this week.	L	Timesheets
	Ø 15th Oct 2019		く Other Documents
	Demo Personal Tutor (Demo University)		
	It is good to see that you are settling in well. As discussed previously, I can advise on how the grading assessment works, should this be required. You will also find the guidlines at the front of your PAR document.	I	
	Add Comments		
	Add comments		
	Add Comment		

Users who are assigned to a document will be **sent a notification** when a comment is added. If there are any unread comments, this will also be shown on the discussion tab when you next open the document.



Icons for comments are colour coded by the type of user who added them:

- Learner comments have a red icon
- Placement staff comments have a green icon
- Academic staff comments have a blue icon

To delete a comment that you have added to a document's discussion board, click the cross icon at the to right hand corner of it.

## **Timesheets**

You will have access to learners' PARE timesheets as soon as they have been assigned to your placement area on PARE. You will need to be listed as **supporting their discipline** on your PARE account profile to view and access their timesheet. You do not need to be assigned to a learner to see or access their timesheet.

## **Dashboard Timesheet Access**

To access a learner's timesheet, go to the **Learner Timesheets** section of your dashboard. Open a timesheet by clicking on the timesheet details document icon, or placement name details for the timesheet record.

Learner Timesheets		
Student	Placement	Hours
Student1, Test	Test Hospital - Ward 1	0h 00m 📄
Student2, Test	Test Hospital - Ward 1	0h 00m 📑
Student3, Test	Test Hospital - Ward 1	0h 00m 🗎

You can also view a learner's timesheet through their PAR document by clicking on the **Timesheets** tab to the right of the page.



For some learner's timesheets, only their Assessor can add the final signature. To be assigned as their assessor, either contact your Placement Educator Leads or Placement Senior Administrators, or you can assign yourself using the dashboard Claim a Learner feature.

# We strongly advise contacting your Placement Educator Leads/Senior Admins to be assigned as a learner's assessor when possible

## **Timesheet Temporary Access**

A learner's timesheet will no longer be displayed on your PARE Dashboard from 4 weeks after they complete their placement. If necessary, a learner can grant you **temporary access** to the timesheet on PARE. This temporary access will last for 4 weeks, then must be granted again.

# A learner cannot grant you access as their assessor if this role was not previously assigned to you

## **Editing Timesheets**

You can record hours for multiple **activity types** on PARE for the same shift. These activity types will vary by discipline. These different activities might be signed off by different members of staff.

The weeks display on the timesheet when it is first created and cover the time period between the placement start and end dates. You can expand and collapse the display of each week via the plus icon to the left of a week.

Learners will generally add their own hours to their timesheets, which you will then sign off to confirm them as accurate. You can, however, add hours to a learner's timesheet if necessary.

### **Adding Timesheet Weeks**

For some learner programmes, additional weeks can be added to a learner timesheet. If this is necessary, the learner should check with their personal tutor or module leader before doing so.

To add timesheet weeks, click on the **Add Week** button:

Timesheet Details	🙆 Export PDF   🥭 History   💠 Settings / Grant Access
<ul> <li>The student is responsible for ensuring this record is complete</li> <li>Students should complete <b>37.5 hours</b> each week and <b>MUST N</b></li> <li>The Practice Supervisor / Assessor must sign to confirm the sti</li> <li><b>N.B.</b> It is the Practice Supervisor/Assessor's responsibility to complete placement, which can be found at the bottom of the page</li> </ul>	ed and submitted to Faculty IOT exceed 48 hours (including study days) udent's Practice hours completed at the end of each shift onfirm the overall Practice hours completed at the end of the
🌲 Student name: Test Student 1	皆 Cohort: Test
🏛 University: Test HEI	🖹 Module No:
Placement: Test - Placement 4	🛗 Date: 9th May 2022 🗲 3rd Jun 2022
Practice Assessor: Test Placement Educator Lead	Practice Assessor Email: test_pel@onlinepare.net
Practice, Night Shift, Practice Related Activity, Planned Leave, Unpla C19 Isolation	nned Leave, Day Off, Absent, Sick, Special Leave, Make Up Hours,
Week Commencing: 9th May 2022	0h 00m
Week Commencing: 16th May 2022	Oh 00m
Week Commencing: 23rd May 2022	Oh 00m
Week Commencing: 30th May 2022	0h 00m
+ Add week	

Then, select the date you would like the new week of your learner's timesheet to start from. Please note, the Add A Week pop up box will only allow you to select a **Monday** as a start date.

Add A Week									×
<b>Please note:</b> Only the first day of t Monday will be greyed out if that w	he week veek is a	(Mono lready	day) cai include	n be se ed in th	elected ne time	esheet.			
🛗 Week Commencing:									
	0		Ma	y 202	24		0		
	Мо	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	Su	🕇 Add	Week
			1	2	3	4	- 5		011 00111
	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	urs 🖲	0h 00m
	13	14	15	16	17	18	19		
	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	urs 🖲	0n 00m
	27	28	29	30	31			Shift:	0

Once you have chosen the day for the new timesheet week to start, click the green **+ Add Week** button at the bottom right-hand corner. The new week will then appear on your learner's timesheet.

## **Adding Activity Types & Hours**

To add activity types and hours to a timesheet, use the drop-down box to select the activity type. To add another activity to the same day, click the blue **+ Add Activity** button below their first activity.

tice 🕗, Night Shift 🤇	<b>)</b> , Practice Related Activi	ty 🕗, Absent, Sic	k		
🕯 Week Commencin	g: 1st Jan 2024 🚯				Zh
Monday	Activity Type	Start Time	End Time	Hours	🛔 Practice
monady					Supervisor/Assessor
1st Jan 2024	Practico	8:00	16:00	7.20	Supervisor//issessor

Activities are automatically saved as they are added to the timesheet and do not need to be saved manually on PARE

To remove an activity that has not been signed off, click **X Remove Activity** beneath the activity type. Once the activity has been signed off, to remove it you will first need to remove the signature using the green **Unlock** icon next to the signature. This prevents the activity from being changed without being verified and signed by a member of staff.

For some activity types the hours must be recorded. If this is the case, please select the start and end time for the activity. The number of hours spent on their activity is displayed to the right of the start and end times and will be calculated automatically. These can also be adjusted manually if necessary.

Other activities may just display the Hour box as they will always be for the same number of hours (a 'Study Day' activity for example).

Some activity types, such as 'Day Off' will not require hours to be recorded and will therefore display no additional boxes next to the Activity Type.

Monday	Activity Type	Start Time	End Time	Hours	🛔 Practice
1st Jan 2024	Practice	8:00	16:00	8:00	Supervisor/Assessor
Note: + Add/Edit Note	× Remove Activity		10.00	0.00	Add Signature
Tuesday	Activity Type				A Practice
Tuesuay					
2nd Jan 2024	Day Off	~			Supervisor/Assessor

Each timesheet also has a section which lists the total hours in the placement, as well as subtotals by activity type. Below is an example for a Nursing student.

		Total Hours	22h 0m	
	Tot	tal Practice Hours ፀ	18h 0m	
	Practice Relat	ed Activity Hours ፀ	2h 0m	
		Night Shift Hours ፀ	10h 0m	
	т	otal Theory Hours ፀ	4h 0m	
		Night Shift Shifts	1	
l declare that this form accurately	represents the student's Practic	e hours during the	stated period.	
Please note: The signatures below should	only be added at the end of the placem	ent when all weeks ha	ve been completed an	d signed off.
Please note: The signatures below should	only be added at the end of the placem Add Signature	ent when all weeks ha	ve been completed and	d signed off.

Click on the information icons (the 'i' symbol next to right of the Sub Total labels), to see which activity types that are included in each sub-total.

In the nursing timesheet example above, the Total Practice Hours includes the Practice, Practice Related Activity, and Night Shift activity hours. The Practice Related Activity and Night Shift activities also have their own sub totals, and a count of the total number of Night Shift activities is displayed.

## **Adding Notes to Timesheet Days**

Click **Add/Edit note** to the left of the activity type and hours to add additional information about a shift on the timesheet, such as a reason for a learner's absence. Notes can be left by the learner, practice, and HEI staff.

Monday 29th Jun 2020 <u>Note:</u> + Add/Edit Note	Activity Type Practice Remove Activity	~	Start Time 8:00	End Time 16:00	Hours 8:00	Practice     Supervisor/Assessor     Unsigned
--	--	---	--------------------	-------------------	---------------	---

Clicking on the **Add/Edit Note** link opens the Timesheet Notes pop-up:

Timesheet Note	×
Add a note for the following day: <b>29th Jun 2020</b>	
Student left shift early, due to illness	
	//
	✓ Save Note

Text added via the **Timesheet Notes** pop-up is displayed under the timesheet day. To edit a note, click **Add/Edit Note** again. To remove a note, remove all the text and click **Save Note**.

Monday	Activity Type	Start Time	End Time	Hours	🚔 Practice
29th Jun 2020	Practico	8.00	12:00	4:00	Supervisor/Assessor
Note:	Flactice	* 0.00	12.00	4.00	Unsigned
Student left shift	× Remove Activity				
+ Add/Edit Note	Activity Type				Practice
	Sick				Supervisor/Assessor
	111 0	-			

## **Signing Off Timesheets**

Placement or academic staff need to sign off the activities added to their learner's timesheet, to confirm that they are accurate. The Overall timesheet must also be signed off by the learner and placement/academic staff.

Adding a signature to an activity **locks** it, and if changes are required, this will require the section to be unlocked. After a period of time, a timesheet will be set to **read-only** where no further changes can be made, even by unlocking, unless the whole timesheet is re-activated.

#### **Signature Access**

Most timesheet activities require a signature from a member of staff to confirm that they are accurate. If you have access to sign an activity off, a green **Add Signature** button will be displayed.



# Timesheet activities should be signed off by members of staff who have been supervising the learner placement and can verify the learner hours

Signed off activities will display the name of the member of staff who has signed the activity. Once an activity is signed off, the activity **locks down**, and boxes for the activity are **greyed out** and cannot be edited. This is so that changes cannot be made without a member of staff signing them off.

Monday	Activity Type		Start Time	End Time	Hours	🛓 Practice 🥂 🧧
8th Jan 2024	Practice	~	8.00	16.00	7:30	Supervisor/Assessor
Note:	1 racied		0.00	10.00	7.50	Test Educator (Supervis
+ Add/Edit Note						6th Mar 2024 3:18pm

Signatures on timesheets can also be **counter-signed**. This facility is normally used to provide a fully qualified signature against a practice supervisor/educator in training.

Monday	Activity Type	Start Time	End Time	Hours	🛔 Practice
8th Jan 2024	Practice	× 8.00	16.00	7:30	Supervisor/Assess r
Note: + Add/Edit Note	Tractice	0.00	10.00	7.00	Test Educator
					(Supervisor)
					6th Mar 2024 3:18pm

See Counter-Signing in the Assessments section of this Guide for further information on countersigning electronic signatures on PARE.

## Signature Access Through the Learner Log-In

For some timesheets, placement staff can sign a timesheet through the learner's login. The timesheet settings allowing or preventing other users from signing via learner PARE accounts are determined by the HEI leads for the programme.

You will see a signature **pencil icon** displayed against the placement staff signature label if this feature is available for your programme's timesheet. Clicking on the signature edit button opens the Electronic Signature pop-up. Depending on the timesheet's settings, if PARE users can sign through their learner's account, you will need to either enter your PARE login details, or if staff without PARE accounts can add their signatures, you will need to add your sign off credentials.

## **Declaration Section and Overall Signatures**

When all timesheet activities have been signed off, the **Declaration** section at the bottom of the timesheet will need to be signed by the learner and a placement member of staff with the appropriate level of access. The timesheet may also require sign off by an academic member of staff, depending on the programme and the timesheet settings.

I declare that this form accurately represents the learner's Practice hours during the stated period. Please note: The signature(s) below should only be added at the end of the placement.					
🛓 Learner Signature:	Unsigned	🛗 Date Signed:	Unsigned		
Practice Assessor Signature:	Add Signature	🛗 Date Signed:	Unsigned		

# A practice educator can only add the final signature once all the individual activities have been signed off

## **Unlocking Timesheets**

If the overall signatures have been added, the timesheet must be **unlocked** before any further changes can be made. Unlocking either a timesheet or activities within a timesheet removes the signatures and allows the timesheet's activities to be edited.

After making any required changes, the activities that have been added/updated will need to be resigned before the timesheet can then be signed off again at the bottom.

🗎 🛗 Week Commencing	g: <b>21st Mar 2022</b>				Oh 001
Week Commencing	g: 28th Mar 2022				40h 0r
× Delete All Activities Fr	om Week				
Monday 28th Mar 2022	Activity Type	Start Time	End Time	Hours	Practice
Note: + Add/Edit Note	Practice	♥ 8:00	16:00	8:00	Test Placement Educator
					6th Jul 2022 4:26pm
	+ Add Activity				
Tuesday	Activity Type	Start Time	End Time	Hours	A Practice
29th Mar 2022	Practice	₩ 8:00	16:00	8:00	Supervisor/Assessor
+ Add/Edit Note					I est Placement Educator

The Unlock buttons for individual activities are no longer displayed once the overall timesheet signatures have been added. To unlock the individual activities, the overall timesheet must first be unlocked.

## **Timesheet Read-Only Status**

The learner's timesheet will be set to read-only 14 days after the placement end date if it has been fully signed off, otherwise it will remain open. Timesheets are set to read-only after a year even if they still remain unsigned.

Once a timesheet is read-only it cannot be edited; timesheets set to read-only should never require amending. Timesheet hours should be signed off as close to the week dates as possible, and hours will only be added to the total practice hours for a timesheet and programme. If you need to edit a timesheet which has been set to read only, the learner's placement office must be contacted to unlock it.

## **History Logging**

Like the PARE assessment documents, the PARE timesheets include a **History Log** that records all changes made to the timesheet. Every time a signature is added, or removed via an Unlock action, this information is recorded in the history log. The PARE user who made the change, and the time and date of the change are also recorded. To see this information, click the **History** button on the right-hand side of the placement details section.

Placement Details	🖉 History		
Student name: Test Student 1	Cohort: Dec_19		
University: Test HEI	Module No:		
Placement: Test placement	Date: 01/12/2019   31/07/2020		
Practice Assessor: Test Educator	Practice Assessor Email: test_educator@onlinepare.net		
C Total hours on placement: 0H 00M	Download timesheet as PDF		
9e Day Types: Ρ (Practice). NS (Night Shift). PRA (Practice Related Activity).	AA (Authorised Absence). UA (Unauthorised Absence)		

This will open the **Timesheet History** pop-up for the timesheet.

Timesheet Histo	ory			×
S Student	Supervisor/ Assessor/ Educator	Team Manager/ Student Link/PEF	University Staff Member	
Search: Searc	h			
Date	User	Details		
3:32pm 7th Mar 2024	Test Educator     (Supervisor)     (test_trust_educator1@online	New activi Activity Type: pare.net) Date: <b>3rd Jan</b>	ty added 2024	
3:32pm 7th Mar 2024	Test Educator (Supervisor) (test_trust_educator1@online	Signature a Activity Type: pare.net) Date: 3rd Jan	added to shift Day Off 2024	
3:32pm 7th Mar 2024	Test Educator (Supervisor) (test_trust_educator1@online	New activi Activity Type: pare.net) Date: 2nd Jar	ty added	

See History Logging under the Assessments section of this Guide for further information.

## **The PARE Team**

For issues of a **technical nature**, you can contact the PARE support team via a PARE support ticket; see the **Create Support Ticket** link in the **Help Centre** section of the website. Provide all the details the Support team will require to be able to investigate and resolve your issue, for example your placement educator name, placement details, and PAR document pages numbers and titles.

If your issue is related to an **account login issue**, then you can still raise a support ticket via the PARE website. From the **Create Support Ticket** option in the **Help Centre** options, when presented with the login window select **Continue as Guest** at the bottom of the login pop-up.

Access the PARE Help Centre at:

https://onlinepare.net